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+ | Glecm A, Hareis (Lo Cousel) DC Bar No. 4283304 22 !

Lawrence A. West :
2 |Daniel[H. Rubepstein P
Neil 1.Welch, Jr.
3 | Toha J Feld I
Nancy E. McGinley
4 | Cery C. Kirchert L
Securities and Exchange Commission
§ |450 Fifth Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 203545-0911
6 |(202) 942-7934

1 Nicole Morgen (Local Counsel) CA Bar No. 166441
Securities and Exchange Commission

8 | 5670 Wilshire Blvd., 11th Floor

Los Apgeles, CA 90036-3648

o 1(323) ?65-3880

10 | Attorneys for Plaintiff .
Securities apd Exchange Comrmssion

12 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
B FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
o | BY FAX
15 | SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ) Case %?2 :
COMMISSION, ) & 23 } Ji-/(L.SP)
16 ) COMPLAINT
17 Plaintiff, )
v. )
18 )
15 |TLSE'CAPPEL, )
i ) .
20 ' Defendant. )
)
21 : ‘
2 ! Plaintiff Securities and Exchenge Commission (Commission) alleges:
B SUMMARY
28 g |
25 1. This case involyes & massive financial fraud at Peregrine Systems, Inc,, 2 publicly
26 )traded] San Diego-based software company. During the fraud, Peregrine filed with the

)Cummission majerially false financisl statements for af Jsast eleven quarters, covering fiscal

yeml.ZOOO, 2001, end the frst three querters of fiscal 2002, In one portion of the wide-ranging
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frand, fﬂefendant Tse Cappel, then the Senior Treasury Manager st Peregrine, engaged with other

persoms, including Peregrine’s Chief Financial Officer, in a scheme to conceal Peregrine’s
f
diffiexiities in collecting its acoounts receivable. Those difficulties arose because Peregrine

resord:ed fevenue on contingent sales and other noﬁ-binding arrangernents it entered into with

[ .
c‘ustorfners. Cappe] and the others concegled the aceounts receivable problems by, among vther

I i
things, selling fetitious recejvables to banks and improperly accounting for cash callected at
quarter end. In addition, while Cappel possessed material nonpublic information about the frand

and the corpany’s true financial condition, she ﬂiéga]]y soid more than 15,000 shares of
| : .
Pf:xegfrine stock.

[l

2. By engaging in the acts alleged in this complaint, Cappel violated, or aided and

t

abcttf:sd Peregrine’s violations of, the antifreud, books and records, intermal accountipg controls,
and reporting provisions of the federal securities laws, and unless enjoined by this Court, will

contihte to do so.

THE DEFENDANT
3. Cappel was employed at Peregrine from 1993 until sﬁe left the company in June

' \
I - e . e .

2002 Cappel held various positions at Peregrine, including Senir.;r Treasury Mapager. Her
| .

p:imm:y respongibilities mcluded financing accounts receivable, intermational collections, and
foreqashng cash and days sales outstandimg, or DSO Cappel is a certified public accountant

(on dehnqumt status for failing to pay Beense fees) axd resides in San Diepo, California.
|

. . _ 5
' DSO is the average number of days it takes 2 comipany to-collect ity accormts recedvable. Itis an apatyticel ool
used by financia] analysts and investors 1o track the age of 2 campany’s aggrogate accounts receivable and to assess
the q ulity of'a company’s receivables and, ulimatety, its vevenus. The formula for calt:u'latmg DSO is aceoumts
receiyable divided by sales times days in the quarterly or amrual pnnud.

COMPLAINT -2
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1 | THE ISSUER

4, Peregrine, a Delaware Eorporaﬁﬁn with principal offices in San Diego, Celifomnia,
sells ixllﬁ‘astrucmrc ymanagement software. Its fiscal year ends March 31. From its initial public

l i:' a -
oiferi)ilg in April 1997 to the present, Peregrine’s common stock has been registered with the

6 Comiﬁssion pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. Section 781(g)]. It traded
\
7 | on the Nasdag National Market System from its initial public offering until Angust 30, 2002,

1 .
whenlit was delisted. On September 22, 2002, Peregrine filed a volmtary pefition for
9 i '
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

10
I ) JURISDICTION AND VENUE
12 ' §."  This Court has jurisdiction over this sction puzsuant to Sections 21(d), 21(e). 21A,

B and zi‘r of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) [15 U.8.C. §§ 78u(d) and (&),

18 | 3
72u-1, and 78aa]. y
s ,
6 | 6, Venue properly ljes in this Court pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15

17 |US.C. § 78as] because Cappel inhsbits and transacted business in this judicial district, becanse
[. . ' -
18 | offers and sales of the securities af issue in this case took place in this judicial district, and

18 becayse certain of the acts and transactions constituting the violstions ip fhis case accurred

20 '
witbi;n this judicial district.
n '

5]

Ii 7 Cappel made use of the means aud mstrumentelities of interstate commerce in
comection with the acts alleged in this complaint,;
8. The Commission requests that the Court permanently enjoin Cappel from

engaging in further violations; impose civil penalﬁas upon her for participating in the accounting -
26

, fraur;; order Cappel to pay disgorgement, plus prejudgrnmt Interest, and civil penalties for
2 . :

28

. coMPI.um-— 3




e e AR SV e s SRl MEaEM Y MY EE VY e e e vt ittt  —

10

11

12

13

14

16
17
18
13
20

21

23

2

27

— —— Cage502:voz3I0- VWG Document 1 Filed 11/22/(. PagelD.5 Page 5 of 14

|

insidai trading; and order Cappel to disgorge any other ill-gotten gains, plus prejudgment
mtareét

PEREGRINE'S ILLUSION OF SUCC‘ESS

{ 9. Following its initial public uffermg ‘in April 1997, Peregrine reported 17

cnnselz tive quarters of revenue growth thmughthe quarter ended June 30, 2001. During this
perioé.. Peregrine’s publicly reported financial results met or exceeded analysts’ expectations,
and the company’s stock price increased from $2.25 per share (split-adjusted) to as high as
$79.50 per share on March 27, 2000.

10.  However, Peregrine’s apparently stjf'cllar financial results were illusory, and its

stock price artificislly inflated. Many of its suﬁ\?;;re “sales” that were recorded as revenue did
ot quahfy for revenne recognition wmder Ge:m:rally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
Begmnmg no later than 1999, Perogrine managanm engaged in a myriad of deceptive sales and
accoynting practices to create the illusjon of gxowﬂ:, including secretly adding material sale
contingencies—by oral or written side agreementfto what appeared on their face to be binding
cm:nﬁacts.

11.  Much of Peregrine’s improper revenue recognition occurred in conpection with its
purperted software sales to resellers, also known :{.rs “channe] partners.” Peregrine’s written

couh\m:ts with channel partners typically appeareti,tn bind the channel partrers to pay Peregrine.

In reality, the channe] pariners” obligations to Perggrine often were not fixed, but instead were
condftioned upon resale to an end-user. Peregrine persormel typically concealed these
cuntiugencies in written or oral side agreements. Althongh Peregrine personnel knew that the
company’s channel partners had not committed to purchase Peregrine’s software, Peregrine

nevertheless recorded these transactions as revenue.

COMPLAINT -4
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! ]12. As a result of these improper rev=nu£e recagnition practices, during Peregrine’s 17
' uane::s of “growth,” the company was accumulating, on its balance sheet, millions of dollars of
aging xecmvables that Persgrine manageraent Jnew the company would never collect. Large
aged ar:counts receivable were not fuming inta cash, and as a result DSO and other uuportant '

6 |indicators of Peregrine’s financial health were deteriorating.

7 CAPPEL SOLD RECEIVABLES TO BANKS TO LOWER PEREGRINE’S DSO
.13,  Certain Peregying personnel understood that the corpany’s customers would not

pay invaices generated from contingent sales and that if these purported accounts receivable
1% :

|
;1 |remathed on Peregxine’s balance sheet, the coppany’s DSO figure would increase. They also
12 | understood that if DSO became too hiph, securities analysts might suspect that Peregrine had
13 imprdperly recorded revenue.

14 : .
. 14, Peregrine’s Chief Financial Officer directed Cappe! to remove receivebles from
15 '

s Pereg:rine’s belance sheet by selling them to banks,ar quarter end. Cappel followed the Chief

17 |Financial Officer’s jnstruction. Each quarter she caloulated the dollar amoupt of receivebles she
L need;d to sell to meage the DSO number down 10 the target range the Chief Financial Officer |
had sI t for her After Cappe] sold the receivables for cash, Peregrine removed them from its
balance sheet.? Tl'us practice, which Peregrine did not properly disclose to investors, reduced the
mmiany s DSO to the leve] the Chief Fizancial Officer prESanEd, and perpetuated the illusion

that Peregrine’s customers wers promptly paying Peregrine.

i

2 On August 29, 2002, Percgrine sunounced that its management “believes that the company should bave

28 |sc d for its accounts recsivable factaring aTrangements as loans instead of sales of xeceivables without
recourse,” &nd that “previously reported belance sheets will be restutzd to reflect the Joan balabces, which wete a3
high 4s 5180 million In past pericds.”

COMPLAINT - §
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! CAPPEL SOLD FALSE INVOICES TO BANKS

]
H

'15.  As the quarter ended June 30, 1999 came 10 a close, Peregrine had sold all

availahle receivables but still peeded to reduce DSO to make its target. Cappel, the Chnef

Finangial Officer, and certain other Peregrine persorme] agreed to prepare invoices for
transan:zﬁuns that had not closed, totaling approximgtely $12 million, and to sell them to a bank.
Cappe:l then sold the bank the “receivables™ thaxthg; invoices supposedly represented. As it
tu.n-nacll out, not all of the contracts closed, leaving Peregrine with a shortfall of several million
dollar{s.

; 16.  InJume 2001, Cappel informed the é:hjaf Financial Officer that Peregrine would
miss the target DSO ntmber becanse its receivables were approximately $20 million too high.
With 'lrhe Chief Financial Officer’s approval and encoxzragement Cappel created a false §19.58
mﬂhcn invoice and sold it to a bank. By selhng false receivables to banks, Cappel and other
Pen:ghne personnel caused Peregrine’s financial books and records to overstate Peregrine’s cash

flow, |and understate its accounts receivable.

CAPPEL JMPROPERLY ACCOUNTED FOR QUARTER-END CASH COLLECTIONS

17.  Peregrine further falsified its balance sheet and DSO by improperly accounting
for cash collected from customers. Peregrine and the banks buying its receivables agreed that
even pfter Peregrine sold the banks the recejvables, Peregrine would collect the receivables and
then remit payment to the banks within a certain nme period. Thus there was generally a
permissible lag time between the date Peregrine cpﬁected cash and the date Peregrine had to
remil payment to the banks. Percgrine’s practice was to reduce accounts receivable when
Peregrine sold a receivable to a bank. Then, if and when Peregrine collected the receivable,

Cappel would reduce accounts receivable again by the amount of the collecion. When this

COMPLAINT -6
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1 pracucgl resulted in Peregrive’s holding money at quarter end, Cappel called it the “double dip,”
becauslé Peregrine had already taken the receivable off its books. In addition, Peregrine woul&
il to :fncrease accounts payable to reflect its liability to the bank, and would record the cash as
its UWﬁ, instead of holding it in trust as required by’ ‘the banks.

6 : 18.  When the double dip occurred, Peregrine’s reported receivables were artificially
7 |reduced, cash was arnﬁcla.llymcrcaSBd apd DSO was anificially decreased. Tn the following
quartei‘, when Peregrine remitted the cash to the banks, Peregrine wonld reverse the doutle dip
o enﬁ'ie%. Peregrine dguble dipped almost every quatter, beginning in Septernber 1999, One of the
1 |most égregious examples of the quarter-end dauble dip occurred in the third quarter 0£2002. On
1z Dece:::bcr 11, 2001, 2 Peregrine customer made an early payment of $13.8 million on 2

I
1 receiveble that Peregrine had sold to abank. The payment was not actually due from the

“ custo I er until February 12, 2002. Although Peregrine's contract with the bank required
Pm%'me to remit customer payments within two weeks and to hold them in trust, Peregrine did
17 nmthzr As a result, as Cappel and the Chief Fma.ncxal Officer knew, Peregrine’s reported

18 ac:nmts receivable at quarter end were understated by §13.8 million, as was its liability to the

benk]

- CAPPEL SOLD PEREGRINE STOCK DURING THE FRAUD

19.  Between March 17, 1999, and January 2, 2002, Cappel sold 16,249 shares of

Peregrine common stock for total proceeds of $33i,287, at split-adjusted prices ranging between
ag $14.AL’5 and $30.25 per share. She sn;ld 10,116 of tilese shares at $14.45 per share on January 2. -
2% |2002—just hours before Peregrine prelimina:diY announced disappointing results for the quarter
27 | euded December 31, 2001—for proceeds of $146,176. The armonncement of disappointing

Tesults was made after the market closed. The foll"boﬁng day Peregrine stock closed at §9.26.

| COMPLAINT -7
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But the= information Cappel possessed about the fraud was not disclosed in any fashion for nearly

four menths, On April 30, 2002, after Peregrine closed at §6.85 per share, the company

annouxl:cd that it would delay the release of its fourth querter and fiscal year financia] results.
The following day, Peregrine shares closed at $3.4S on volume more than ten times greater thap
pormal. A week later, on May 6, Peregrine announced that based on preliminary information |
certair transactions involving revenue recogpition ‘i:rregﬂaﬁtics, totaling as much as $100

million, had been called into question. The stock closed at $0.89. Nearly four months Jater, on

Augqut 29, Peregrine ammounced the completion of an investigation conducted by forensic
! . .
acconbtants and legal advisors retained by Percgrine's audit compmittee Into accounting

irregularities in the company's financial statements for fiscal years 2000, 2001 and the first three

quarters of fiscal year 2002. The compapy further annowneed that Peregrine mansgement
be]ie‘i[ed that the company would reduce previous_ly recorded revenue by epproximately $250
nﬁ]]ic;n during the 11-quarter restaternent period. ‘After this announcement, the stock closed at
$0.2‘?i per share,
| 20.  From 1999 through 2002, Peregrine paid Cappel a base annual salary. She was
also 1lnaid performance-based bonuses totaling $9,7,"5 0.

FIRST CLAIM

Cappel Violated Exchange Act Section 10(b) and Exchange Act Rule 10b-5
[Financial Frand] '

21, Paragraphs 1 through 20 are rcaﬂeg"ed apd incorporated herein by refercnce.
22.  Cappel knowingly or recklessly pafﬁcipatcd in misrepresentations and oraissions
of fabt with the intent of materially misstating Percerine’s publicly reported Snancial results by

selling false receivables to banks and by impropetly eccounting for quarter-end cash collections.

P

COMPLAINT - §
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23. By reason of the foregoing, Cappel violated Exchange Act Section 10(b) [15

US.C. § 78i(1)] and Exchange Act Ralle 10b-5 [17 CF.R. § 240.10b-5%].
' SECOND CLAIM

Cappel Vialated Securities Act Section 17(a), Exchange Act Section 10(b) and Exchange
, Act Rule 10b-5
[Insider Trading]

24.  Paragraphs ] through 20 ere realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

i 25.  Cappel sold Peregrine stock on the basis of material nonpublic information
conceming Peregrine’s true financial condition, in breach of her fiduciary duty to Peregrine and

its shereholders.

26.  Byreason of the foregoing, Cappe] violated Securitics Act Section 17(a) [15
U.S.(il '§ 77q(2)], Exchange Act Section 10(b) [153 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Exchange Act Rule 10b-

5 [17! CFR. §240.10b-5].

THIRD CL.A™M
Cappel Violated Exchange Act Section 13(b)(5) and Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1 and Aided

and Abetted Violations of Exchange Act Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B)
[Books and Records and Internal Controls Violations]

t
'

27, Paragraphs 1 through 20 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

28,  Cappel deliberately circumvented existing internal accounting controls in order to
falsify Peregrine’s books and r;ecords.

2.9- Cappel, directly or indirectly, falsi;;'led or caused to be falsified, books, records, or
accoymts described in Exchange Act Section 13(b5(2) [I5U.SC. §§ 78m()(2)].

30.  Ceppel knowingly and substagtially participated in a scheme to cause extensive

fa)se and misleading entries in Peregrine’s books and records. By doing so, Cappel aided and

3 2001 ed, p. 48, proroulgated 12/22/48, as amended &/11/51.

COMPLAINT -
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abéﬂed Peregrine’s failure to make and keep books, records, and accounts, which, in reasonable

detail, accurately and feirly reflected the company’s transactions and dispositjons of its assets.

31,  Cappel knowingly and substantially.coptributed to Peregrine’s failure to mejntain

it intarnal accounting controls. By doing so, Cappel aided and abetted the coptpany’s failure to
devisejand maintein a system of internal accoupting controls sufficient to provids reasonable
assurances that transactions were recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

stai:cml.euts in conformity with GAAP.

32. By reason of the foregoing, Cappel violated Section 135 [15US.C. §

78m(b)(5)] and Exchange Act Rule 1362-1 [17 CFR. § 240.13b2-1*] and aided and abstted
violations of Bxchange Act Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) [15 U.8.C. §§ 78m(b)2)(A)
i . 1
and 78m(b)2)(B)]-
|

FOURTH .CLATM

Cﬁppel Aided and Abetted Violations of Exchange Act Section 13(a) and Rules 12b-20,

1321, and 132-13 thereunder
| (Reporting Violations]

| , .
| 33. Paregrsphs 1 through 20, and paragraphs 28 through 31, are realleged and

incorporated herein by teference.

i 34,  Cappel knowingly and substanﬁallhy participated in Peregrine’s inclusion of

ﬁna.ninial statemepts that were not presented in cog;formity with GAAP 1 itsb anmual and quarterly

repofts filed with the Commission from the first quarter of fiscal year 2000 (the period ended

Tume|30, 1999) through the thixd guarter of fiscal 'ym 2002 (the period ended December 31,

‘20

D1 ed, p. 121, promulgated 2/23/79.
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35, Byreasop of the foregoing, Cappel aided and abetted violations of Exchange Act
Section 13(2) [15 U.8.C. § 78m(a)] and Exchange Act Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13 [17
CFR.[§§ 240.12b-20°, 240.13a-1°, and 240.132-137).

RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE, Plaimtiff Secimities and Exchange Contmission respectfully requests that

this Court:
I

Issue an order of permanent injunction restraining and enjoining Cappel, and her ageats,

sar\.ra:rts, employess, attorneys, and assigns, and those persons in active concert or participation
with Ber, and each of them, from violating Securities Ast Section 17(a) (15 US.C. § 77q()].
Exuthgc Act Sections 10(b) and 13(5)(5) [15 U-S.C. §§ 78(b) and 78m(b)(5)), 2ud Exchange
Act Rules 10b-5 [17 CFR. § 240.10b-5] and 13b2-1 {17 CF.R. § 240.13b2-1), aud fom aiding
and aIbetLing vialations of Sections 13(), 13(B)(2)(4), and 13(B)2)(B) [15 US.C. §5 78mia),
78mﬁb)(2)(A) and 72m(b)(2)(B)] and Bxchange Act Rules 126-20 [17 C.F.R. §240.12b-20},
133-1 [17 CFR. §240.13a-1], and 132-13 [17 C.FR. § 240.13a-13].

i f

| Lssue an order directing Cappe] o disgorge, with prejudgment imterest, all ill-gotten gains

resulting from her conduct described in this complaint.

[
2001 ed., p. 100, promulgated 2/13/65.
2001 ed,, p. 116, proxmulgated 7/24/97.
2001 ed., p.

119, pronulgated 5/12/77, as umended 5/3/83, 7/9/85, 3/13/89, 3/27/92, and 6/14/96,

= & A
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III.

Issue an order directing Defendant Cappel to pay civil monétary penalties under

Exchanpe Act Sections 21(d)(3) and 21A of the Exchange Act {15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d)(3) and 78u-

11

Grant such other and further relief as

Dated: Novembcn%[ 2002

LWGI:
“ WLW&‘*——

Nicolas Morgan

Securities and Exchange Commission
5570 Wilshire Boulevard, 11th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90036-3648
Telephone: (323) 965-3877
Facsimile: (323) 965-3908

urt may deem just and proper.

Glenn A Hmis (Lead Counsel)
Lawrence A. West

Daniel H. Rubenstein

Neil J. Welch, Jr.

John Field ITI

Nancy E. McGinley

Cory C. Kirchert

Attomeys for Plaintiff

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.-W.
Washington, DC 20549-0911
Telephone:(202) 942-7934 (Harris)
Facsimile:(202) 942-9581
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